TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
AGENDA FOR A REGULAR MEETING

OF THE PROFESSIONAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

August 11, 2016 — 12:00 p.m. — Assembly Room 1

Tri-City Medical Center, 4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056

The Committee may make recommendations
to the Board on any of the items listed below,
unless the item is specifically labeled “Informational Only”

Page Time Requestor/
Agenda ltem Nos. Allotted | Presenter
Call To Order/Opening Remarks 2 min. Chair
Approval of Agenda 1-2 2 min. Chair
Public Comments 5 min. Standard
NOTE: During the Committee’s consideration of any Agenda item,
members of the public also have the right to address the Committee at that
time regarding that item.
Ratification of minutes of the July 2016 Meeting 3-8 2 min. | Committee
New Business
Consideration and Possible Approval of Policies and Procedures 9
J. Piearson
Patient Care Services
1. Billiary Drain, Care of Percutaneous Procedure. 10-11 J. Piearson
2. Patient Classification (Acuity) Procedure 12-13
Administrative Policies and Procedures:
1. Signage 215 14-15 All
Unit Specific
Infection Control
1. Bed Bugs, |dentification and Control 16-17
2. Bloodborne Pathogen Exposure Control Plan 18-34
3. Scabies and Lice 35-42
43-45
Women and Newborn Services
1. Infant Baptism
46
Review and Discussion of CLINICAL Contracts- NO Contracts To Review 10 min. | Chair
(Discussion/ Possible Action)
Review and Discussion of PAC Charter 47-50 10 min. | Cheryle
Bernard-
Shaw
Motion to go into Closed Session 2 min. | Committee
CLOSED SESSION 30 min. | Chair
a. Reports of the Hospital Medical Audit and/or Quality Assurance
Committee (Health & Safety Code Section 32155)
b. Conference with Legal Counsel — Significant exposure to litigation
(Government Code Section 54956.9(b))
Reports from the Committee Chairperson of any Action Taken in 10 min. | Chair

Closed Session (Government Code, Section 54957.1)




10. Comments from Members of the Committee 5 min. Committee
11. The next meeting of the Professional Affairs Committee of the Board is on 1 min Chair
| September 8, 2016.
1 min Chair

12,

Adjournment




‘wa)l 8y}
JO UOIJBIBPISUOD S,99)IILO0D

-o1qnd a104aq olgnd ay} 0}
8y} JO slaquiawl woij sjuswwoo Buipsebal 1saJ9)ul Jo way Aue uo olgnd
[IBYONIN 401081 ydeibeted sy peas ||oyoH J0}034IQ | 8y} JO siequdw Aq sjuswwo] ¢
“)o0||eyos Jojoaiiq Aq pepuodss
pue opJeuo) "I Aq epew sem ‘SUOI}BD1IPOW 10 SUOIHpPE OU alam 13y}
[IBYSU J10308.11Qg epuabe ay} anoidde 0} UOON pue epuabe ay} pamsirsl SIWILIOD 8Y | epuaby jo jeaorddy g
"I wooy Alqwessy ul ‘w-d Go:ZlL e
[IBYoUWy J10jo3lid Jopdo 0} Bunesw sy} pajied ||aYaNN J03oaild JaplQ oL |IBD |
ajqisuodsay suoljepuawiwoddy
(s)uosiad Jjuonay dn-mojjod uoissnasiq oido)

"SUON :Judsqy Siaquiapy

Z1IoH UBLIEY] PUE BLISNG BIOLIEY ‘BUNOA 8A8)S ‘owley Awaler ‘[ojuoQ uonoajul pue Aylend |9 ‘aoueldwo) Kioje|nbay
10} J0}BIIQ ‘UosIeald Iwer ‘souendwo) pue AiojeinBay Joj Jojoaiiq IS ‘Ybneueaed else ‘[9SUN0Y [eJaUdD ‘Jooy Apor uasald s1syyo

19010 doueldwo) J8Iyd
‘MeUS-pJeulag ajfiayd pue ‘dA IS /AND ‘ZNYoS uoleys ‘dA '8x3a /009 ‘Aisjuod endey| ‘O30 ‘Ullield SAS)S Juasald siaquisiy Bunop-uoN

"UBWIOAA 1100S "I pue uosuyor
1q ‘e U9 "IQ ‘OpIEIUOD SnaJepy "I ‘Bliuul4 euowey J0joaliq Hoojjeyds Aue Jopaud (11eyd) jIBYSNIN BneT Jojoallq  Juesald Slaquiap

9102 ‘vi Ainp
sajnuipy uoissag uadp
Buijespy 99310 SllelY |[BUOISSd}0.id
1ajua) [eslpsy A)o-1L

14dvdd




[4

glyLL0 SAINUINOVd

¥Z uiyum aunoid e Bunyje) spuswiodsl
a)e)s ay] -1snbny ul SW09 [|im spod! 8y L
‘uoneBWNIop NdVH J0} Seaie pajosje
jo sain}oid Jaieald 10 SpOod! 9ABY UOOS |[Im
sasinu ay) ey} papodal iwer pue uoJeys
SNdVH

‘uolssiwpe Jo aimnpedsp

0] |eAlIe QF woly Jopoys 196 sawi) Jlem
pue Japaq s)ob moj) usned ayj se | Buiy
ale sjuaned ‘aAnisod si abeu) mau ay) uo
yoegpea) AJunwiwod a8y} ey} psjou Sem jf
(@3) ndybnouay] juaned

"SaNss| 8say)

anosdwi 0} suollepuswWwIodal spew pue
s||e} o1 Buipesj s10joe} ay) Ayuapt Aues|d
01 100} O 8y} pasn dnoib sy} Buipeay

SI OUM ‘ulpJeH 3[[dudI "s|jej uo anssi au}
ssalppe 0} suonn|osal wioj pue sabuajjeyd
juioduid 0} pawIO) SeM Wed) [|lews y "sHUN
ay} ul s|je} aonpal 0} pajyusweldwi Ajjusdal
sainseaw ay) passnosip Aljauq lwer

pieoqyseq SawoonQ ‘g

uosieald lwef |euonewsoju| s|je4 | pseoquseq 1osfoid Ajuoud ‘e
ssauisng MaN G
'910¢
aunp Wwolj seynuiw a8y} anoldde
0] UonoW 8y} papuodas ejiuul4 ‘Bunosw

ZUSH ualey|

10)9811(] PUB paAoul %20||eyoS
10)0811(] ‘poIiIel saInuin

9102 ‘6 unf woly sanuiw sy} sacidde
0} UoIowW B 10} pajjed ||y 1030alId

‘9L0c {unr
JO sajnuiw Jo uonedyiey v

s|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

suoljepuawWwoddy
juonoy dn-mojjod

uoissnasid

oido]




€

9l¥1 .0 S8INUIN OVd

elano enued

‘lencisdde pieog

J1oj premuo} Buinow ssioljod sy}
anoidde 0} uoljow dy)} papuooss
g|iuul{ J0j9a11q pue paAow
opJejuo) “iq ‘seunnoy Yys pue
Juawubissy | Dy uo Aojjod 8y} jJo
uondaoxa ay} yym panoidde alom
sainpaoold pue sa191|0d S82IABS

ale) jualjed syl :NOILIV

1100} @y} ul uswom Bunejoe|ueubaid 10}
uonesipaw ay} buipsebas psppe aq 8j0uj004
e jey) peysebbns sem )| -isnbny ul Buipess

UOoISSILUPE UO Buop 84 Os|e |lIm Ing d3 8y}
ul suop Ajpuaind st Buluasios |oyodfe syl

‘S 1OV 9y} 4O Sainp ay} Jo awos Ajueld 0}
paau B S| 8184} SE [jam SE Jlun sJISualod 8y}
10} ebueyd sweu e s| asay} souls Aojjod siyy

o [|nd 0} @AWW 8y} Aq papioap sem |

“‘Upm |eap o} ssaooid Ases AisA e jou

s1 ) Aym si Jey) sassao04d pue uoljewlojul
10 10] B SaAjoAuUl sisdas yum Buljesp

1ey) pajesayal e ig “Aj@reinodoe sjusied
sisdas yoeJ) 0} ajejdwa) e pajealo || wol
aonug aluejsy ‘sisdas Buipualy ul ||am Bulop
s1 jepdsoy ay} }ey} pauonuaul UBWIOA 1
sisdag

“Heyo s usned

ay) OJul Spod! 8y} wouy Af}oasp psuueds 8q
ued sabewn ay| -ebed suo ul uoljewoul
ay) ||e buiney pue uoissiwpe Jo sinoy

wswabeuepy woldwAg
[eMeIPUYNM 040Dl ¢

(SOv) seamies
alen 9Ny pue
A1jawia|a) 10} sauiinoy
WIYS pue syjuawubissy

(LOV) sueluyoa
2. padueADY |
:Sainpadoid

pue sa121j0d a1e) juaijed

S2INpadoid pue saldljod
Jo |eaousddy 9|qissod
pue uoljesapisuo)d "o

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

mco_uut:w:.::oowm_
juonoy dn-mojjod

uoissnasiq

oido|




%4 9Ly .0 seINUIN OVd

Hejs [edipaiN
aytoads Jun
Juswuedaq swabeue |001S
Aol eYs Ui pazinn Apsow sty “syun | aseoubiq (9gn L [e109Y)
ay) Ul uayo Asaa pasn jou si Aojjod siyL Jjuswabeue| |00IS "L

‘sjuswadinbai

o oY) Aq papuswiwodal S| i se sdoys

|eanpaosoud 8y} jo auo uo Ajsjewixoidde,

pappe os|e iwer "payiou aq uedisAyd ay)

1M USUM UO JusLusie)s 8y} uo 210w 10 8Uo
Aue, Buippe sdajs ainpaooid 8y} Jo swos Buiuieyqo ‘subig (el

UO SUOI}JROILEID SWOS apeW UOSUYor “ig ( oneIsoypQ) [eanisod ‘9

‘Jsij uosiad

poddns Ajiwey} ay) uo uoiluysp sy} ul psppe

aq p|noys jiejs ajge|ieAe uo paseq, uwus)
syl ‘swaiinbal Or e SI )l se JUsSsesse uoneNoSnsSay

10 |00} Buisinu 8y} 0} pappe sem Aajjod siyL Buung e@ousasaid Ajjwe4 g

‘K|oAIND9SU0D BUop 8 0} 8AeY Jou
soop g¢ abed uo paulno ainpasold sy} jeyl
payuelo Jayuny sem 3} “sasodind Ayuiiojun
J1o} ;noybnouy} |ie ped Aousbiswe Aes pjnoys
Kaijod sjoym ayy jeyy dnoub ay) Aq uodn
paalbe sem}| "ped Yseid e Wolj Juaisylp st
ueo Aousbiawa ay; Ji uonsenb e sem asay] | 1seuy Aeuowindolpie)
‘ven Aouabiawg ¢

‘Aoyjod siy} Aonj04
elang eppuled ul @HOL 0} pabueyo sem DND L wis) 8yl puewwo) jo uleyd ‘¢

s|qisuodsay SuoljepuUaWIWOd3Y
(s)uosiad Juonay dn-mojjod uoissnasiqg oido)




G 9i¥1 .0 SSINUIN OVd
sjfuoyn | palsabbns j00y Apor NOILOV IVd 84l pemainal meys-pieusag 8jluay) | QVd JO UOISSNISIQ pue Mainay'/
l1Isysupy Joyoaaq ‘uaye} uonoe oN NOILOV “YJUOW SIY} JO} PMBIABI 919M SJOBIJUOD ON sjoeJjuO0) |ediul|D ‘9

elianc) elouled

Blian9) eiouled

")00j|eyos 1030Aaaq

AqQ papuooas pue opJejuod

1g Aq panow se panoidde aiem
s)senbal Aiejnwiioj 8yl :NOILIV

"UBWIOAN

"1 Aq papuooss pue ejiuul4
Jo)0a1iq Aq panow se sabueyo
yum panoisdde sem Astjod

Jels [edlpsy 8yl :NOILLIV

‘uonedssiuiwupe

Jo} pinbi| Aue ui paxiw 8q ued }i

‘1apmod e sy ‘(sjusijed oeipled ‘ainjiej jeusl
ojuosyo "6°8) wnIpos |euonippe pasu Jou op
oym sjuaijed 10} pausjald si uoiiedipaw siy |

‘Adesayjowayod

yum pajeloosse Buljuoa/easneu

ay) se ||lam se BuljiloA pue easneu
aAljesado jsod 4oy Ajje1padsa ‘BuiloA
pue easneu Joj pajedipul si brup siyl

‘Brup siy} aquoseud

oym siapiaoid ay) uo pasoduul Hul|

e SI 848y} 0s A|}S00 Os|e S| pue ainsodxa
aJow uoledipaw siy) pasosdde sey
sapIwwo) sonnadesay] pue Aoewieyd ayl

‘(uosdwoy uasjjo) Agq pspuswiiodal

se sassaoold gHOL auljwead)s

0} sieak g 0} pabueyo uo Jaje| Sem Siuy})
sieak Q| se Jej se yoeq ob 0} ssoualsjel
|euoissajoid ay) uo Juswaiinbal ay) sbueyo
0] UOIjEpUSLILLOIaI B Spew 99)luwod ay|

swenN
oBUSS) -WNIDBD X8)qI0S
/owep opes| -esselsp ‘€

aweN
ousuag-juejdaidy/eweN
apel] -puswigy ‘¢

aweN
ousuan-xapewwebng
/sulepN spel| -uolpug ‘|
s)jsanbay Atejnwio4

sjusunuioddesy
JJeis |eaipap\ buisssooiod
‘Aaljod Bulenuspal) |

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

suoljepuswuoday
juonoy dn-mojjod

uoissnasiqg

oidoj




9ly1L.0 SO)NUIN OVd  @©

INd ¥Z:2 ¥e pawnolpe buijespy

juswuinolpy "L 1L

[I9Y3UN 40303410
"SjuUBWILWOD) ON aaIwwo) ay}
[IBYONIN 4030811 JO slaquiajy Wwodj sjluswwo) "0l
uoIssas
"U9X e} SUOIJOE OU 319M 819y | paso|D Ul ua)e] uonoy Auy
[JoUSHN J0308aq Jo uosiadireyd ay) Jo spoday ‘6
‘INd ¢¢-C
[1oYoNKy J10308.a1Qg Je uoissag uadQ 0} uinjal S|BRIILIOY 8YL uolssag uadp ojuinidy '8
"Wd 0G:Z| e uoissas pasofd
oyl o6 0} panosdde Ajsnowiueun
SEeM ]I pue papuodas X20|ieyds "uoISsag paso|) ol
[EIPlokEIlg J0)9al1q ‘parow efuul4 Jipoang o6 0} uonoW B 10} paySe ||8YoN 1033310 uoIssag paso|D L

MeyS-pieulag

‘Bunesw 1xau ulebe pajuasaid
aq |m Japeyo syl ‘sebueyo
pasodoid puas pue mairdl

0] ||e 40} @3aIWWOod 84} 0} {lewsd
ue puas [|IM uaLe)| 'pPasiAal

aq 0} pasu JaUBYD DVd 8Y} BY)

“Jauey)
IVd 84} ul AiBuipioooe pajesswinus
aq ||m Aoy os saoba)ed
ay} ||e o aAIb jim eou] “seioljod
|Je SMBIABI DV d Se N0 uaye)
aq p|noys saioljod aAnessiulupe syl e
sueloisAyd ayy Aq paisabbns
se pajelogeld aq pjnoys sepiroid
90IAJSS [BOIUI|D JO SoUBWIONS
(1ybBisian0 aouBUIBA0E
jou pue) jybisiono AoAlep
a1ed yjjesy apinoid Aes pjnoys j| e
:pa)sabbns saIuIWOd
8Y] 1By} SUOlIEpUBWILWO023] JO Jaquinu
B SeM 8Jay] "99)Jwwod 8y} Yiim 1apeyd

layey)n

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

sSuonEPUBWIWOIY
juondy dn-mojjod

uoissnasiq

oido)




(@)) Tri-City Medical Center

ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

FOR Y@ U

PROFESSIONAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
August 11", 2016

CONTACT: Sharon Schultz, CNE

Policies and Procedures

Reason

Recommendations

Patient Care Services Policies & Procedures

1. Biliary Drain, Care of Percutaneous
Procedure

3 year review,
practice change

2. Patient Classification (Acuity) Procedure

3 year review,
practice change

Administrative Policies & Procedures

1. Signage 215

3 year review,
practice change

Unit Specific

Infection Control

1. Bed Bugs, Identification and Control

NEW

2. Bloodborne Pathogen Exposure Control
Plan

1 year review,
practice change

3. Construction

3 year review,
practice change

4. Scabies and Lice

3 year review,
practice change

Women and Newborn Services

1. Infant Baptism

DELETE

Page 1




:’P . . . . . . . . .
(c\) Tr|-C|ty Medical Center Distribution: Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE: BILIARY DRAIN, CARE OF PERCUTANEOUS
Purpose: To outline the nursing responsibilities in the care of percutaneous biliary drains.
Supportive Data: A biliary drain is used for the treatment of biliary stone disease, biliary strictures, biopsy
of biliary ducts, and relief of obstructive symptoms due to unresectable malignant tumors.

Equipment: 1. Gloves

2. Face Shield or Mask or Goggles

3. Collection Container

4. Biohazard disposal bag available.

A. POLICY:
1. Maintenance
a. Ensure locking mechanism of drainage tube is in locked position to maintain proper and
secure placement of drain or as ordered by physician
b. Secure drainage bag to prevent tension or accidental dislodgement.
2. Bathing
a. No shower or bath for 72 hours\Ahile-biliary-drain-is-in-place—ensure-insertion-site
remains-dns
b. Remove dressing, clean area with soap and water, pat dry and replace dressing
ai. It is normal to have small-crusted area appear around the site, just soften

with water and remove

B. PROCEDURE:

1. Emptying the Drainage Bag
a. Empty drainage bag when it becomes half full or every shift.
b. Don clean gloves. If splashing is anticipated wear mask, eye protection, and/or gown.
C. Empty drainage bag into a measuring container and carefully avoid touching the spout of
the drainage container.
d. Dispose of drainage in the toilet; avoid splashing contents.
e. Document the amount and type of fluid drained in the medical record.
2. Changing the dressing
a. Change biliary drain dressing every other day and PRN or as ordered.
b. Perform hand hygiene
C. Don clean gloves
d. Place the following supplies on a clean surface:

i. Tegaderm bandage
. Chlorhexadine swab
iii. Drain gauze

e. Remove the soiled dressing

f. Change gloves as necessary

g. Assess insertion site for redness and oozing of fluid. Notify the primary care or
Interventional Radiology (IR) provider if these signs are noted.

h. Using Chlorhexadine swabs (or povidone iodine swabs if the patient is allergic to
chlorhexadine), scrub a circular pattern around the exit site for 30 seconds. Allow to dry
for 60 seconds.

i. Place drainage gauze around insertion site.

j- Apply Tegaderm on top of the gauze and over the tube, and apply additional tape to
secure tube as needed to prevent dislodgement.

k. Write the date and time of dressing change and your initials on the dressing.

I. Document in the medical record.

4 Nurslr]g Dt Iof Medical Professional
De::;:;nv: X cgnl::z::::tl:ggs Eégf‘:?i'le eI?adiology (‘:E:;ﬁittitveee c:nf\f:\lir:ee gl?:::?o?;

06/09, 10/10,
02/11, 11114 02/11, 12114 03/11, 12114 08/15 04/11, 01/16 05/11 08/09, 05/11




Patient Care Services Procedure Manual
Biliary Drain, Care of

Page 2 of 2

3.

Removal of Drains

a. If drain was removed by IR or other physician, maintain dressing over drain site until site
is healed. Secure gauze dressing with tape and change PRN.
b. If drain was removed accidentally:

i. Cover drain site with gauze and dressing.

ii. Notify IR and primary care physician.

fii. Collect drain, tubing and other associated products to send with patient to IR.
iv. Contact Risk Management regarding accidental withdrawal.

V. Document incident in medical record.

C. REFERENCES:

1.

2.

3.

Ohio State University Medical Center. (2008, March 18). Biliary drainage. Retrieved May 30,
2009, from hitp://medicalcenter.osu.ed/PatientEd/Materials/PDFDocs/diagnost/gastro/biliary. pdf
Kocher M, Cerna M, Havlik R, Kral V, Gryga A, Duda M. Percutaneous treatment of benign bile
duct strictures. Eur J Radiol. May 2007;62(2):170-4.

Link BC, Yekebas EF, Bogoevski D. et al. Percutaneous transhepatic cholangiodrainage as
resuce therapy for symptomatic biliary leakage without biliary tract dilation after major surgery.
J. Gastroinest surgery. Feb 2007; 11 (2): 166-70

Gottrup, F., Nix, D. P. & Bryant, R. A. The multidisciplinary team approach to wound
management. In R. A. Bryant, & D. P. Nix (Eds.), Acute & chronic wounds: Current
management concepts (3rd ed., pp. 23-38). St. Louis, MO: Mosby.

11



Q‘? Tri-City Medical Center

Distribution; Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE:

PATIENT CLASSIFICATION (ACUITY)

Purpose:

To provide an assessment of the care needs intensity of each patient per shift to assist in
determining the appropriate staffing based on acuity and ratios

Supportive Data:

In accordance with the rules and regulations of Title 22 and Joint Commission

A RESPONSIBILITIES:

1.

3.

The Managers, Assistant Nurse Manager (ANM) or designees are responsible to ensure that

licensed staff complete Patient Classifications (Acuity) for their patients each shift.

a. Each patient’s classification should reflect the patient’s actual care intensity and Activities
of Daily Living (ADL) needs for the current shift.

Nursing is responsible for Patient Classification utilizing the Cerner Acuity Powerform; this

includes Acute Rehab, 1 North, 2 Pavilion, 3-Ravilien-4 Pavilion, Behavioral Health Unit (BHU),

Intensive Care Unit (ICU), Mother Baby, Nursery-Neonatal Intensive Care (NICU), Telemetry and

Eorensics Inpatient Progressive Care Unit.

The Emergency Department and Labor & Delivery will utilize a census based tracking form.

B. PROCEDURE FOR THOSE UTILIZING THE CERNER POWERFORM FOR ACUITY:

1.

| 2.

A task will be triggered at 1200 and midnight each day to the nurse assigned to the patient on
their unit.

The primary Registered Nurse (RN) is required to complete the acuity on the patient by 1300
and 0100 or the task will be noted as overdue.

a. There are care intensity and ADL indicators.

i. The Care Intensity indicator is defined by minimal, moderate, high, 1:1 and 2:1
levels.

ii. The ADL indicator is defined by minimal, moderate and high.

iii. Each care intensity and ADL indicator is unit specific based on the patient
population and has a weight associated to it that assists in determining the acuity
of the patient.

The ANM or desngnee is responSIble to verlfy that all acuities are completed each shift.

C. PROCEDURE FOR THOSE UTILIZING CENSUS BASED TRACKING (EMERGENCY DEPARTMENT

| AND LABOR & DELIVERY):

1.

The coder will document on the Acuity Daily Report the Emergency Department census at 0700
and 1900. A daily Emergency Department (ED) Activity Log is generated at 0700 for the
previous 24 hours which reflects the total patients seen, Patients Left Without Treatment,
ICU admissions and hospital admissions in the last 24 hours. Emergency Severity Index
(ESI) acuity levels are documented in Firstnet when patients arrive in Triage.

The Labor and Delivery ANM or designee will document on the Aecuity-Baily-ReportDaily
Staffing Sheet the Labor & Delivery census at 0700 and 1900. The ANM or designee will fax
this 24 hour retrospective report to staffing by 0900 for filing.

Department
Review

Clinical
Policles &
Procedures

Nursing
Executive
Council

Medical Staff
Department /
Division

Pharmacy &
Therapeutics
Committee

Medical
Executive
Committee

Professional
Affairs
Committee

Board of
Directors

| I 1112, 07116

12/12, 07116

12/12, 07116

n/a

nla

4/12, nla

04/13

04/13

12



| Patient Care Services Procedure-Manual
Patient Classification (Acuity)
Page 2 of 2

D.  INTER-RATER RELIABILITY PROCESS:
1. The purpose yse of this process is to ensure the consistency among the registered nurses in the
interpretation and use of the Patient Classification (Acuity) powerform.

| 2. Each shift a-task-will be-triggered-by-Cernerte-the ANM or designee to-will complete an Acuity
Validation on patients within their department.

| a. The taskis-set-torandemiy-pick Two (2) patients per department for 1N, 2P3R, 4P, BHU
& Rehab.

b. The-task is-settorandomly-pick-One (1) patient per custom location for ICU, Tele and
Mother Baby and Inpatlent Progressive Care Unlt

13



2
@‘gTri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

Administrative Policy Manual

ISSUE DATE:

07/86 SUBJECT: Signage

| REVISION DATE: 5/88; 6/94; 5/03, 8/06, 5/09, 8/12 POLICY NUMBER: 8610-215

Department Approval: 07/16

| Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 07#1207/16
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 08/12
Board of Directors Approval: 08/12
A. PURPOSE:

1. To act in accordance with applicable statutory or regulatory requirements, Tri-City Medical-Center
(FSMG)Healthcare District (TCHD) will post or display signs and informational notices within the
facility. To provide consistent signage, while ensuring a safe and aesthetically pleasing
environment for our patients, guests and employees.

B. DEFINITIONS:

B-1. Permanent signage/signs: Signs that are mounted with the intention of being a permanent
or long term fixture. Examples: Directional way-finding signs, wall pictures, no smoking
signs, regulatory signage.

2. Temporary signage/signs: Signs or postings that are put up with the intention of being in
place for a limited amount of time. Examples: Educational class notices, Foundation or
Auxiliary fundraising events, temporary detour directional signs, seasonal flu advisory
notices.

C. POLICY:

[ 1. FGMEC-TCHD will post and maintain signage as required by the California Department of Public
Health, Title 22 California Code of Regulations, other California law, and The Joint Commission
and Medicare Conditions of Participation requirements.

2, All requests for permanent sign-requestssignage/signs must be approved by the \ice
President-of Suppor-ServicesChief Operating Officer (COO)/designee.

3. Prior to any signs being posted in the facility, whether permanent or temporary they will
need to be approved by the Environment of Care/Safety Officer to ensure they meet
approved specifications and regulatory requirements. (Exceptions listed below: 4.a-c)

B-4. All advertising and marketing materials designed for an internal or external audience, that

contain the Tri-City Healthcare District or Tri-City Medical Center name and logo must be

created and/or approved by the Chief Marketing Officer/designee. This includes all

brochures, calendars, fliers, handouts, pamphlets, stationary, website and broadcast
production, etc.

a. Education related flyers used to promoted educational opportunities, classes, Hot
Topics, etc. only require the approval of the Director of Education, Clinical
Informatics and Staffing.

b. Union Materials: No material shall be posted until approved and initialed by the
Chief Human Resources Officer (CHRO)/designee. Approved postings are to be
displayed on designated bulletin boards. Postings outside of designated areas are
prohibited.

c. Temporary signs/flyers posted within department break rooms, lounges, and
educational boards only require the approval of the department director, manager or
departmental designee.




Administrative Policy Manual
Signage
Page 2 of 2

5. The Facilities department is responsible for the installation and maintenance of all
permanent interior and exterior signs, pictures, signposts, and directional signage.
4:6.  Paper signage may not be posted in fire corridors unless it is laminated, framed, or printed

on fully synthetic paper. Contact the Environment of Care/Safety Officer for guidance and
clarification.

E-D. REFERENCES:

1. California Department of Public Health, Title 22 California Code of Regulations
2, The Joint Commission and Medicare Conditions of Participation

15



)
‘C‘)) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

INFECTION CONTROL POLICY MANUAL

| ISSUE DATE: NEW SUBJECT: Bed Bugs, ldentification and Control

REVISION DATE(S):

Department Approval Date(s): 07/16
Infection Control Committee Approval Date(s): 07/16
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): n/a

Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 07/16

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A DEFINITION:

1. Bed bugs (Cimex lectularius): small, flat, wingless, parasitic insects that feed solely on the blood
of people and animals while they sleep.

a.

b.

B. PURPOSE:

Adult bed bugs are 5-6mm (1/4 inch) & reddish brown in color, while young bed bugs are
Tmm-4mm (1/16”-1/4") & translucent.

Bed bugs do not transmit disease. Bed bug bites will cause red, raised itchy, reactions on
the skin. Scratching can lead to secondary skin infections. Bed bugs are moved from

infested areas to non-infested areas on clothing, luggage, furniture, or bedding. They hide during

the day in places such as seams of mattresses and box springs, bed frames, dresser,
tables and cracks and crevices or objects around the bed. Bed bugs can live several
months without a blood meal.

1. Provide assistance in identifying and controlling bed bug infestation.
C. POLICY:
1. Movement of the patient to other areas of the hospital should be limited.
a. Use disposable suit to provide containment as needed for infestations during transport

throughout facility

D. PROCEDURE:

| 1. While in the Emergency Department (ED):

a.

Place patient in Contact Precautions upon realizing or suspecting the patient has bed
bugs.

b. Exam the patient to determine if bed bugs are present.

C. Place patient in clean gown and linens upon orders for inpatient admission.

d. Bag up all personal clothing & belongings and seal the bag tightly. Keep sealed until the
patient is discharged. If the patient is being admitted, send clothes and personal
belongings home with family if possible.

e. Contact Environmental Services (EVS) to clean the room once patient has been
discharged from bed space. Inform EVS room may have contained bed bugs.

2. Upon inpatient admission:

a. Continue Contact Precautions.

b. Continue to keep all clothes and personal belongings sealed tightly. Send clothes and
personal belongings with family if possible.

C. Have the patient shower if possible.

16



Infection Control Manual
Bed Bugs, Identification and Control
Page 2 of 2

d. Place work order to notify Building Engineering once patient has been admitted to the
room. Include the reason: potential bed bug infestation and will need to have pest control
inspection once patient has been discharged from room.

3. Upon discharge:

a. Once patient is discharged notify Building Engineering so they can contact Pest Control to
inspect room.
b. Once the room is cleared through Building Engineering (& Pest Control), contact

Environmental- ServicesEVS to have room terminally cleaned.

E. REFERENCE LIST:

1. http://www.cdc.gov/parasites/bedbugs/fags.html

2. http://www.cdph.ca.gov/healthinfo/discond/Pages/BedBugs.aspx

3. https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Healthinfo/discond/Documents/BedBugGuidelines.pdf
Al ‘ B e | “:i’zﬁ (s E f

NYMPHS, OR BABY BED BUGS, ARE SLIGHTLY SMALLER AND NEARLY COLORLESS
WHEN THEY FIRST HATCH, BECOMING DARKER AS THEY MATURE. ADULT BED BUGS
DO NOT FLY, BUT CRAWL WHEN SEEKING REFUGE OR A HOST.

| BedBugPolicy



(c‘)Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

Infection Control Policy Manual

ISSUE DATE:

9/01 SUBJECT: Bloodborne Pathogen Exposure
Control Plan

REVISION DATE: 9/02; 9/03; 9/04; 9/05; 10/06, 10/07; 10/08; 10/09; 10/10; 10/12, 10/15

Infection Control Department Approval: 07/14507/16
Infection Control Committee Approval: 07/1507/16
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 09/1507/16
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 10/15
Board of Directors Approval: 10/15

A. INTRODUCTION:

1.

Legal mandates and regulatory agencies such as the California code of Regulation Title 8,
Occupational Safety and Health Administration and the Centers of Disease Control and

Prevention have set standards and published guidelines for the implementation of the Bloodborne
Pathogen Exposure Control Plan.

B. PURPOSE:

1.

The purpose of the Bloodborne Pathogens Exposure Control Plan is to reduce occupational
exposure and transmission of Hepatitis B Virus (HBV), Hepatitis C Virus (HCV), Human
Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) and other bloodborne pathogens. The second purpose is to satisfy
the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) regulations (29 CFR 1910.1030). Our
plan outlines the steps we take to protect our employees from the health hazards associated with
bloodborne pathogens and to provide appropriate treatment and counseling after an exposure.

C. SCOPE:

1.

This plan applies to all inpatient and outpatient services of Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD)

D. AVAILABILITY TO EMPLOYEES:

1.

To help them with their efforts, our facility's Bloodborne Exposure Control Plan is available to our
employees at any time. The policy can be accessed in the Infection Control Manual located on
the Intranet. Information is presented in the new employee orientation and during annual reviews.

E. PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION:

1.

Employee Health Services is responsible for the implementation, maintenance, and
administration of the Injury Prevention Program. In conjunction with the linfection Ppreventionist,
she/he will review and update the Exposure Control Plan at least annually and whenever
necessary to include new or modified tasks and procedures.

To assist the Director of Safety/ Environment of Care (EOC) in carrying out their duties, the

Environmental Health and Safety (EHSC) Committee and following specific people will be
contacted as needed.

Human Resources

Environmental Service Managers

Department Directors, Managers, and Supervisors are responsible for compliance in their
respective areas. They work directly with the Director of Safety/EOQC, the Infection Control

a. Infection Preventionist
b. Employee Health

c. Staff Educator

d. Engineering

e.

f.

18



Infection Control Policy Manual
Bloodborne Pathogen Exposure Control Plan
Page 2 of 17

Department, Education Department, Employee Health Nurse and our employees to ensure that

proper exposure control procedures are followed.

a. Managers will support activities that encourage the active involvement of employees in
education and safety programs. Managers will oversee employees so that initial training
and annual review of bloodborne pathogens are completed prior to annual job evaluations.

b. Registry and contract staff are oriented to the hospital’s exposure control plan prior to
working.
C. Annually, managers will complete the template “Safer Work Practices” (see Appendix

ASafer Work Survey) with input from employees with respect to the procedures
performed in their respective work areas or departments related to safe work practices,
engineered safety devices and personal protective equipment (PPE).

d. Managers will counsel employees who do not use safe practices, PPE, and/or safety
devices.
e. Managers will review quality review reports (RL Solutions) their employees complete to
document why they did not use an available safety device.
4, The Director/Manager of Education and Training Services has been selected to be the facility’s

Education/Training Coordinator. He/she is responsible for providing information and training to all

employees with potential for exposure to bloodborne pathogens including:

a. Developing and scheduling suitable education/training programs.

b. Periodically reviewing training programs with the Environment of Care Officer, Employee
Health, Infection Control, and Department Managers/Supervisors to include appropriate
new information.

C. Training records are maintained for three years and available for examination and copying
to our employees, as well as OSHA representatives. The records contain the following
information, dates of all training sessions, contents/summary of the training sessions, and
names and qualifications of the instructors as well as the names and job titles of
employees attending.

5. Materials Management and Environmental Services will provide all necessary personal protective
equipment (PPE), engineering controls (e.g., sharps containers and sharps safety devices),
labels, and red bags as required by the standard.

6. Produsts-StandardizatienClinical Value Analysis Team Gommitiee-has been identified as the
multi-disciplinary group with primary responsibility for introducing sharps safety products to
TCHD. The committee will provide guidance in product selection, seeking to provide cost-
effective safety devices.

a. Review and selection Sharps Safety Products will follow established routes and include
input from non-managerial employees responsible for direct patient care who are
potentially exposed to contaminated sharps and injury. See Appendix-BClinical Value
Analysis Team Product Evaluation and User Product Evaluation.C-

b. Product Selection will follow a hierarchy of risk (i.e. high-risk procedures and devices
targeted first). The committee will act on recommendations from Environment of Care or
Infection Control Committees related to health care injuries and need for alternative

product.
c. All products will be judged by specific criteria and selection will be guided by user
recommendations.
d. See Appendix-DProduct List for a table of safety devices that have been adopted.
7. Employees who are determined to have occupational exposure to biood and other potentially

infectious materials (OPIM) must comply with the procedures and work practices deemed

appropriate. They are actively involved in reviewing and updating the exposure control plan with

respect to the procedures performed in the course of their work.

a. Our employees are expected to complete initial bloodborne pathogens training and annual
review.

b. They participate in updating the bloodborne pathogen standard with respect to the
procedures performed in their work area or department. “Safer Work Practices” (Appendix
ASafer Work Survey).

C. Licensed healthcare professionals are required to complete a quality review report (RL 19



infection Control Policy Manual
Bloodborne Pathogen Exposure Control Plan

Page 3 of 17

Solutions) when they do not use available Sharps safety devices during the care of a
patient. The report will outline their determination of why using an engineering control
would have jeopardized the patient’s safety or the success of a medical, dental, or nursing
procedure.

d. Employees will participate in the trial and selection of new safety devices.

8. The EHSC will compile and trend the information gathered above. August has been selected as

the regular month for annual plan update.

a. Safety rounds are conducted on an annual or biannual (for patient care units or
departments) schedule.

b. Information from the annual “Safer Work Survey” is compiled by the Director of

Safety/EOC or designee and reported to Environment of Care, Infection Control, and
Products Standards Committees.

C. Risk, Legal and Regulatory Services forwards information from incident and Quality
Review Reports to the Director of Safety/EOC as appropriate.
d. The information will be used to update the Exposure Control Plan with respect to:

i. Areas where engineering controls are currently employed.
ii. Areas where engineering controls can be updated.
iii. Areas currently not employing engineering controls, but where engineering
controls could be beneficial.
e. Area Safety Representatives will support safe work practices by participating in education
efforts and reporting concerns.

9. Employee Health -assisted-by-Werk-Partnersi-Emergency-Bepariment-and Infection Control will
be responsible for ensuring that all medical actions required are performed and that appropriate
employee health and OSHA records are maintained. See the Employee Health Services policy
“Occupational Exposure to Blood/Body Fluid Secretions.”

a. Hepatitis B vaccination series is available at no cost and employees are encouraged to be
vaccinated. See the Employee Health Policy “Hepatitis B Vaccine Immunization Protocol.”
b. Exposure incidents are evaluated to determine if the case meets OSHA's Record keeping

Requirements (29 CFR 1904). The maintenance of the OSHA log is an Employee Health
responsibility.

C. Medical records are maintained for each employee with occupational exposure in
accordance with 29 CFR 1910.20, “Access to Employee Exposure and Medical Records.”
These confidential records are kept in Employee Health for at least the duration of
employment plus 30 years and are provided upon request of the employee or to anyone
having written consent of the employee within 15 working days.

d. Employee Health identifies products involved in contaminated sharps injuries and reports
this information to Material Management so that the number of those devices ordered in
the previous year can be reported to the EHSC.

e. Recommendations are made to the Product Standardization Committee- when a need for
a safety device or alternative product is detected.
f. Recommendations are made to service or department managers when issues related to

unsafe work practices are identified. Referrals are made to appropriate Medical Staff
Chairpersons.

g. Employee Health will present sharps Injury data specific to TCHD at the Infection Control
Committee meeting annually (i.e. safety devices, work practice changes or engineering).

F. EXPOSURE DETERMINATION:

1. The State of California (Cal/lOSHA) requires employers to perform an exposure determination
concerning which employees may incur occupational exposure to biood or other potentially
infectious materials (OPIM). The exposure determination is made without regard to the use of
personal protective equipment (i.e., employees are considered to be exposed even if they wear
personal protective equipment).

2. See Appendix-EPotential Blood Exposure by Job Category for a list of the job classifications in
our facility where all or some employees handle human blood and OPIM, which may result in
possible exposure to bloodborne pathogens. 20




Infection Control Policy Manual
Bloodborne Pathogen Exposure Control Plan

Page 4 of 17

3.

Since not all of the employees in these categories would be expected to incur exposure to blood
OPIM, examples of tasks/procedures that would cause these employees to have occupational
exposure are listed in Appendix-EPotential Blood Exposure by Job Category.

G. ENGINEERING CONTROLS:

1.

One of the key aspects to our Exposure Contro! Plan is the use of Engineering Controls to
eliminate or minimize employee exposure to bloodborne pathogens. On December 17, 1998 the
Cal/lOSHA Standards Board adopted emergency regulation revisions to Title 8, Section 5193 to
meet mandates of Assembly Bill 1208. On January 2001, Federal OSHA was instructed to add
sharps safety to national requirements. The major purpose of the revisions is to increase
protection from sharps injuries by supplying employees with engineered sharps safety devices.
a. If available, needleless systems are required for withdrawal of body fluids after the initial
venous or arterial access is established administration of medications or fluids, and other
procedures with potential for exposure to a contaminated needle.

b. If needleless systems are not used then needles with engineered sharps injury protection
are required for withdrawal of body fluids, accessing a vein or artery, administration of
medication or fluids, and other procedures with potential for exposure to blood or OPIM.

C. Other sharp devices with potential for contamination with blood or body fluids (e.g.
scalpels, lancets, broken capillary tubes, and drills) are also required to have engineered
sharps protection.

d. TCHD is exempt from implementation if at least one the following is applicable.

i The device is not available in the marketplace.

ii. A licensed healithcare professional directly involved in a patient’s care determines
that the use of the engineering control will jeopardize patient care or safety.

iii. An objective product evaluation has been completed indicating that the device is
not more effective in reducing sharps injuries than the device currently used by
TCHD;

iv. There is a lack of sufficient information to determine whether a new device on the
market will effectively reduce the chances of a sharps injury and an objective
product evaluation is being conducted.

e. See the table on Appendix-BProduct List for a review of the Sharps Safety Devices that
have been adopted.

f. Contaminated needles and other contaminated sharps are not sheared or broken. They
are not bent, recapped, or removed uniess it can be demonstrated that there is no feasible
alternative. Recapping or needle removal is accomplished using a mechanical device or a
one-handed technique.

g. Containers for contaminated sharps are easily accessible to personnel and located as
close as is feasible to the area where sharps are used or can be reasonably anticipated to
be found.

i Contaminated reusable sharps are placed in appropriate containers immediately,
or as soon as possible, after use.

ii. Sharps containers have the following characteristics: rigid, puncture-resistant,
portable, if it is necessary to ensure easy access by user, color-coded and labeled
with a biohazard warning label, and leak-proof on the sides and bottom. These
containers lock when closed and do not reopen easily

iii. The sharps containers for single use items are disposable and are not opened,
emptied, or manually cleaned. In the event of a special circumstance when it
would be necessary to access the container, it would be reprocessed or
decontaminated.

iv. The containers are maintained upright throughout use and are replaced as needed
when % full. A contract service is responsible for replacing containers as needed.
h. In addition to the engineering controls identified on these lists, the following engineering

controls are used throughout our facility.
i. Hand washing facilities and waterless hand cleansers are readily accessible to
employees with potential for exposure. 21



Infection Control Policy Manual
Bloodborne Pathogen Exposure Control Plan

Page 5 of 17

ii. Specimen containers are leak-proof. No special label/color coding is required for
intra-facility specimens as Standard Precautions are utilized in the handling of all
specimens and containers are recognizable as containing specimens.

i, Secondary containers are used if the specimen could puncture primary container
or outside contamination.

H. WORK PRACTICE CONTROLS:

1.

In addition to engineering controls, our facility uses a number of Work Practice Controls to help
eliminate or minimize employee exposure to bloodborne pathogens.

a.

Employees follow Standard Precautions with every patient. As a result, we treat all
human blood and the following other potentially infectious materials (OPIM) as if they are
known to be infectious for HBV, Hepatitis C Virus (HCV), HIV, and other bloodborne
pathogens:

i. Semen

ii. Vaginal Secretions

ii. Peritoneal fluid

iv. Tissue and Organs

V. Amniotic fluid

vi. Synovial fluid

vii. Pleural fluid

viii. Saliva with visible blood
iX. Pericardial fluid

X Cerebrospinal fluid

Eating, drinking, smoking, applying cosmetics or lip balm and handling contact lenses is

prohibited in work areas where there is potential for exposure to bloodborne pathogens.

i. Food and drink are not kept in refrigerators, freezers, on countertops or in other
storage areas where blood or other potentially infectious materials are present.

ii. For example, eating and drinking is not allowed at nurses stations, in patient
rooms, on patient bedside tables, or other places where patients, specimens, or
dirty instruments/devices might have touched.

Mouth pipetting/suctioning of blood or other infectious materials is prohibited.

All procedures involving blood or other infectious materials are performed to minimize

splashing, spraying or other actions generating droplets of these materials.

Equipment, which becomes contaminated, is cleaned with a hospital-approved

disinfectant as soon as possible.

i. If shipping of equipment for repairs is required, the device will be cleaned or an
appropriate biohazard-warning label is attached to any contaminated equipment,
identifying the contaminated portions.

ii. Information regarding the contamination is conveyed to all affected employees, the

equipment manufacturer, and the equipment service representative.

I PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT:

1.

The employee’s 'last line of defense' against bloodborne pathogens. Because of this, our facility

provides (at no cost to our employees) the Personal Protective Equipment that they need to
protect themselves against such exposure. See AppendixFStandard Precautions-Personal
Protective Equipment Table for tasks/PPE suggested. This equipment includes, but is not

limited to:

a. Gloves

b. Fluid resistant gowns
c. Glove liners

d. Laboratory coats

e. Face shield

f. Resuscitation bags
g. Masks

h. Hoods

22



Infection Contro! Policy Manual
Bloodborne Pathogen Exposure Control Plan

Page 6 of 17

[ Safety glasses/goggles

j- Shoe covers

K. Mouthpieces

l. Pocket masks

2, Personal Protective Equipment is stocked on supply carts, Pyxis dispensing stations, or available
from Materials Management.

a. Reusable PPE is cleaned, laundered, or decontaminated as needed. The hospital
provides laundry services for laboratory coats designated as PPE.

b. Single-use PPE (or equipment that cannot, for whatever reason, be decontaminated) is
disposed in the regular waste container. Only items saturated and/or dripping with blood
are disposed of in ‘red-bag’ trash.

3. Protective clothing (such as gowns and aprons) is worn whenever potential exposure to the body
is anticipated. See Appendix-=Standard Precautions-Personal Protective Equipment Table.

a. Any garments penetrated by blood or other infectious materials are removed immediately
or as soon as feasible and all personal protective equipment is removed prior to leaving a
work area.

b. Surgical caps/hoods and/or shoe covers/boots are used in any instances where gross
contamination is anticipated (such as autopsies, deliveries, and orthopedic surgery).

4, Gloves are worn as outlined in Standard Precautions and Appendix-FStandard Precautions-

Personal Protective Equipment Table.

a. Hypoallergenic gloves, glove liners, and similar alternatives are readily available to
employees who are allergic to the gloves our facility normally uses.

b. Utility gloves are decontaminated for reuse. If they are cracked, peeling, torn or exhibit
other signs of deterioration they are discarded.

5. Masks and eye protection (such as goggles, face shields, etc.) are used whenever splashes or

sprays may generate droplets of infectious materials. See Standard and Transmission Based
Precautions and Appendix-FStandard Precautions-Personal Protective Equipment Table.

J. ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES:
1. Environmental Services plays an important role in maintaining our facility in a clean and sanitary
condition and is an important part of our Bloodborne Pathogens Compliance Program.
2. The Supervisor of Environmental Services is responsible for setting up our cleaning and
decontamination schedule and making sure it is carried out within our facility.
3. To facilitate this, we have set up a written schedule for cleaning and decontamination of the
various areas of the facility. See the Environmental Services Unit Specific Standards.

a. All employees are responsible for maintaining a clean work area, equipment, and have
hospital-approved disinfectants readily available to use on small spills. Environmental
Services is called for assistance as needed with larger spills or special cleaning.

b. All equipment and surfaces are cleaned and decontaminated after contact with blood or
other potentially infectious materials. Patient care equipment and devices are cleaned
between patients and after the completion of medical procedures. Work surfaces that
may have been contaminated are cleaned at the end of the work shift.

C. All pails, bins, cans and other receptacles intended for use are routinely inspected,
cleaned and decontaminated as soon as possible if visibly contaminated.
d. Potentially contaminated broken glassware is picked up using mechanical means (such as
dustpan and brush, tongs, forceps, etc.). Only broken glass is placed in a Sharps
Container.
4. All regulated waste is safely handled by staff according to TCHD policies and procedures.

Disposal of all regulated waste is in accordance with California, State, and local regulations. See
the Environment of Care Manual (formerly Safety Manual) - Waste Management Plan section and
Infection Control Policy Waste Management.

a. See the Decision Table for Medical Waste in Appendix-GDecision Table for Medical
Waste

5. Environmental Services is responsible for the collection and handling of our facility's
contaminated waste until our outside contractors pick it up for off-site processing. Environmental 23



Infection Controt Policy Manual
Bloodborne Pathogen Exposure Control Plan
Page 7 of 17

K-L.

services aides hold the bags away from their bodies when removing use heavy gloves to protect
their hands from possible sharps injury and do not push down on trash in garbage containers.

6. Regulated waste is placed in containers that are closable, constructed to contain all contents, and
prevent leakage. They are labeled or color-coded (see Labels to follow) and closed prior to
removal to prevent spillage or protrusion of contents during handling.

7. All used linen is presumed contaminated and placed in appropriate containers labeled 'soiled
linen'. All linen is handlied as little as possible and is not sorted or rinsed where it is used. Plastic
bags are used to contain potential contaminants and these soiled linen bags are transported in
secondary containers to prevent leakage.

a. Employees who contact contaminated linen wear appropriate protective equipment
(gloves and gowns if soiling of clothes is possible).
b. Plastic soiled linen bags can be taken into a patient’s room to contain used linen. These
bags are then placed in the hamper or directly in the soiled linen room.
C. Linen hampers lined with the plastic bags can also be used. When hampers are % full,
nursing staff will remove the bag, tie it off, and take it to the soiled linen room.
d. Environmental Services is responsible for the collection and handling of our facility's
contaminated waste until pick-up by our outside contractors for off-site processing.
FORMS:
1. Safer Work Survey
2. Clinical Value Analysis Team Product Evaluation
3. User Product Evaluation
4, Product List
5. Potential Blood Exposure by Job Category
6. Standard Precautions - Personal Protective Equipment
7. Decision Table for Medical Waste

RELATED DOCUMENTS:

1. Employee Health and Wellness Policy: Injury and lliness Prevention Program

2. Employee Health and Weliness Policy: Occupational Exposure to Blood/Body Fluid Secretions
3.

Environment of Care Manual: Hazardous Material and Waste Management and Communication
Plan

4, Environment of Care Manual: Hazardous Waste Management

5. Infection Control Manual: Hand Antisepsis-Hygiene

6. Infection Control Manual: Standard and Transmission Based Precautions
REFERENCES:

1. Cal OSHA BBP Standard §5193. Bloodborne Pathogens, Subchapter 7. General Industry Safety

Orders Group 16. Control of Hazardous Substances Article 109. Hazardous Substances and
Processes 1998.

2. Medical Waste Management Act, California Health and Safety Code, Sections 117600 — 118360
California Medical Waste Management Program Information Copy — January 2000
www.cadhs.gov

3. Grota, P. (Ed.). (2014) APIC Text of Infection Control and Epidemiology (4" ed). Washington DC:
Association for Professionals in Infection control and Epidemiology, Inc.

4, Wenzel, RP & Nettleman, MD, Principles of Hospital Epidemiology in: Mayhall G. ed. Hospital
Epidemiology and Infection Control. 2nd ed. Philadelphia: Lippincott, Williams & Wilkins;
1999:1357 - 1366.

5. Siegel JD, Rhinehart E, Jackson M, Chiarello L, and the Healthcare Infection Control Practices
Advisory Committee, 2007 Guideline for Isolation Precautions: Preventing Transmission of
Infectious Agents in Healthcare Settings http://www.cdc.gov/ncidod/dhqp/pdffisolation2007 .pdf

24



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
SAFER WORK SURVEY

The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) estimates that between 100,000 and 1,000,000
sharps injuries occur each year. Various studies have estimated the risk of developing occupationally
acquired bloodborne pathogen infections: HCV (3% - 10%), HBV (2% - 40%), and HIV (0.3%) following
sharps exposure. The risk of transmission increases if a device visibly contaminated with blood causes the
percutaneous injury, is used to puncture the vascular system, or causes deep injury.

1. Safety Devices

Do you have suggestions for sharp devices with built in protection that would make your job safer?
Comments:

2. Safe Work Practices

Do you have suggestions for adoption of safer user actions? (Examples: neutral or safe zone for sharps,
second layer of gloves, and avoid handling dirty trays)
Comments:

3. Personal Protective Equipment

Do you have suggestions for use of personal protective equipment? (Examples: double gloving, heavy
leather gloves for trash handling, effective eye and face protection)
Comments:

25



1. - Manufacturer of Product

TCHD: Products Standardization.C i
Clinical Value Analysis Team Product Evaluation

2. Name of Product
3. Distributed by Sales Rep
4. Description of Use
5. Will this device replace a high-risk device

(hollow-core, blood-filled, or capable of deep injury)? O Yes O No
6. Productwould be used? O House-wide [ Lab [0 OR [0 Specialty Unit
7. What items would this replace?
8. Cost Standard item cost
9. Has TCHD rejected the device in the past? [1 Yes [0 No
10. Does the device have a passive safety mechanism? UJ Yes O No
11. Can the safety mechanism be activated with one hand? ! Yes O No
12. Can the user tell when the safety mechanism has been activated? U] Yes I No
13. Are minimal changes in technique and use required? U] Yes O No
14. Is this product dependent on other products or items? U Yes OO No

Identify:
15. Is the device compatible with products currently in use? [J Yes [d No
16. Does the system/device require a minimal number of parts? 0 Yes (O No
17. Is the product available in typical size ranges? O Yes OO No
18. Is the product on contract D) Yes O No
19. Product rep available for 24hrs/day in-service? 0 Yes OO No
20. Does the manufacturer supply free trial products? U Yes OO No
21. Does the manufacturer have adequate supply capability? [ Yes OO No

APPROPRIATE FOR TRIALS [ ]

COMMENTS

REJECTED []

26



Name

Appendix-CUser Product Evaluation
FCHD:-User Product Evaluation

Date

Dept/Unit

How would you rate this product compared to other similar products you have used?

CRITERIA

BETTER

SAME

WORSE

Easy to open package

Ease of assembly

Ease of use

Comfortable feel for user

Length of time required for use

Activation of safety feature

Safety feature can’t be defeated

Has minimum failure rate and functions as intended

Good for use with different patients

Safe for healthcare workers

Safe for patients

Patients complaints

Doctors complaints

Easy to dispose

Compatible with other products

Will reduce the risk of injury

Reasonable number of parts

Available in the sizes you need

How many times did you use the product?

Would you recommend purchasing this device?
Is there another safety device you would rather use?

Specify:

O Yes O No
[J Yes [0 No

Comments?

27



28

s1onpo.dd Ajages uosuddig
uoag /M spnpoud Ajajes
S00Z/0T Pamdina4 -uou uosupRPIg uoldag oe|dau
1002/80 03 UOII3|3s [1PUNO) BulsinN
'sabueyo Bojeied '000Z/0T | 0002/0T sponposd uosuppiq uoldsg v/N | sebneb snouea ‘185 z-3 L-J€S
yiim siaiayjed "A’T uosuyor Ajjrsyng e
5002/0T pamalnad g uosuyor ssejdau sabnen s(jedoibuy e
0002/0T | 0002/0T 03} uoiales |1PUNOD buisinN v/N snouea ‘spienboiny 33Asul syels A1 v
GS002/0T pamalnal
z00z/1
1002/T 1002/1 19|02n19 “¥o13s1abul4
966T > 9667 > | "apm-jendsoy pazijian s3dNpold v/N 1009puUa] D13 199H jooue poojg ‘¢
syonpoad
X30d SUWIS JO UORD3|3S 1M OgVv |W-€
G00Z/0T Pamalral T002/9 juswyedaq Ateuow|nd v/N 1IN 949V |W-T SN D89V 'C
‘Juswaalbe
1e3A-G wnuwiul "sabueyd 1pnpoldd ‘|1pUNoD
pue dwnd 10j sabueyd jenjdeIu0) siabeuely suoneiad Buisinn
‘pJepuels se padnpoJiul s|ielpiend S002/T | Aq uonepuswwodadl Buigny pue wa3sAS "A'l SSa|9|paaN sHely
/m sdwnd As|pa siely ‘S00¢/€ Wa1sAs sS9|9|pasu "A'] sHelY v/N Buignl "A'1 IV | AI SS9[9IpP3aN T
saivg
VA3
SLNIWWOD 1@ NOILVLNIWITdW] ¥asn NOILVANIWW023Y | "IVAT W/ 3DIA3G DI4ID3dS adAl lonaodd
1SI7 1ONnaodd

n*%m.wm%



z0/8 paaosdde piepuels Ajajes
S00Z/0T pamalrald ‘syonpodd Alajes-uon
10/40 T0/L0 aoejdad 03 sonpodd uosuppIg sabneb snoueA ‘opiiB-A1a)es
10/S0 10/S0 uo309g 4O UOID3|as
1002/60 | T0/60 > Alojeioqe] pue Buisiny
39S U0RRDI[I0D
Alta1Inqg Alases-uou aoe|day poO|g %0I-A194eS JaUIRINIeA
03 sonpoid uosupdia uoidag
000¢ 6661 > 10 uoIP3|as Alojeloqe
plens 2|peaN uo]
a4n3jound saxa|d-o1g aoe|dad poo|q pd0D e
03 syonpold uosupIg U0y Vv/N poojg asdip3 Jauteyndoen | ° UAS/O|pooN ®
0002 000Z > 4o uonds|as Aiojeloger S[poau Ajaanng o
. do) Iauienddes e
sdoj saddoas Jaqqnd sagnL e
aoe|dad 03 s1onpold uosuia .
66T > 661 > L0JPag 4O UOPD3|3S AlojeioqeT] V/N /M saqn | lsuieinddep | uonRda|iod poolg "9
S00Z/0T pamainal
panoidde piepuels Alsles u
pano.idde spiepuels 1onpodid sulpoen g SHREAsH
zo0z/1e/8 puUB dAIjEUIS)[R SE SB|paau A UA
T0/L0 T0/40 SWIS SYD01S/SpusWwiloday z00z 23d sbniqg apo) 9bULIAS po|[d-aid
saivqg
*IVAZ
SINIWWOD 3 NOLLV.INIWITdW ¥asn NOILVANAWWO23Y | VAT W/W 3ADIA3A II4IDAAS 3dA L 1onaodd

a-apuodedy

29



SS920e JejndseA

pajue|dul
sa|paau Huod-uou s 10J a|pasu
80/¥ 80/¢€ o4 Ajuo 821A8p Ajejes apinoid v/N pieg Buliod uoN "0t
-9|qissod
uaym pasn saoiAs3p budels
‘paydope sasnoesd dlom ajes 3|paau auININg "6
siedjess e|g Alajes BUUOSID
80/8 pamalAdy | 1002Z/60 Ajases euoSIad 03 abueyd v/N sopeig AlajeS d
z00z/e0 papuswWwwodal NJJV ‘adS “¥3
1717 S002/TT pamainay AB0j03AD
z00Z/€0 | 1002/10 | ® ABojoigodIW Ut sopelq AlR4es v/N {adieds Ajajes euUOSIad |ad|eos '8
bew]
X3 U1 15e13uo)
SobulAS paj|iJ-ald
s1PnpoJd uosupIg Uo1dg sabneb snouea H0|-Ajajes SobulAS Jejnbay
100¢/60 10/6 > 40 uoi3IBS |1PUNOD buisinN v/N WIISAG SSBI3|POSN 03 1349y suoipalul AL £
80/1/¥ melp 1D3lIp 10] SDIABP
ssadoe 20| 43n) gg 03 pabueyd
1771 50/6/11 pamalaay
700 ut pabueLd S22IA3P d3jsuel. 0
"sapl|s N3P 19 1 poojgd -adg
oxew 03 S3|padu Jo asn ajeuiwl3
03 AWO0J0G3JYd Ul PASN 1966T > | 966T > sabuuiAs diL yo7-4enT ad V/N | poojq Jasuadsip poojq a4es-4id
199
uo1329j|0) pooig 3o141aes ad
1002/60 /a2IA9p SS399Y Y0T-49N7 a9 v/N W2ISAS SS3|9|P8N 995 2DIAOp JojSuUBl} e
1onposd uosupdiq uljdwes sui] e
buiob uQ 966T > | U0Id2g JO uoII3|9s AlojelogeT] Vv/N $3|1309 eIp3a 2910eg 2IN3[n> poo|q

30



JOB CLASSIFICATIONS WHERE ‘ALL’ OR ‘SOME’ EMPLOYEES
HANDLE HUMAN BLOOD AND OTHER POTENTIALLY INFECTIOUS MATERIALS.

‘ALL’ EMPLOYEES

‘SOME’' EMPLOYEES (TASKS PERFORMED WITH RISK)

Administrative Coordinator
Advanced Care Technician

Case Managers/ Clinical Social Worker (during patient
interviews or family conferences)

Biomedical Tech Mechanic | & Il

Chaplain (during patient or family ministrations)

Cardiac Rehabilitation Coordinator

Food Service Worker (during tray delivery, pick-up, or

cleaning)
Certified Nursing Assistant Clinical Dietician
EEG Tech and EEG coordinator Security Officer

EKG Tech

Environmental Service Aide and
Supervisor

Emergency Medical Technician

Employee Health Nurse
Occupational Health Nurses & Manager

Infection Control Specialist

Laboratory Assistant/Phlebotomist
Operations Manager

Clinical Laboratory Scientist
Histology Lab Tech

Licensed Vocational Nurse

Lift Team

Nurse Practitioner
Physicians Assistant

Occupational Therapist and Rehab Aid

OR Tech/Sterile Processing
Tech/Perioperative Aide/Surgical
Instrument Aide

Perfusionist

Phlebotomist

Physical Therapist

Physicians

Pulmonary Services Operations
Manager

Radiology Operations Manager & Tech

Registered Nurse

Rehabilitation Services Manager

Respiratory Care Practitioner |, Il & llI

Security Officer

Wound Care Nurses

31



Appendix-FEStandard Precautions-Personal Protective Equipment Table
Standard Precautions
Personal Protective Equipment Table

Exposed Body Parts

Contamination of Ciothing

R = Required Hands Face Soiling Saturation Dripping

A = Available Gloves Face Shield or ICloth Gown | Water-proof |Shoe Covers

N/A = Not Applicable Mask & Goggles Gown
RIAINAIR[A[NA[R]AINAIR|A[NAIR| A [NA

REMOVING, OPENING AND MANIPULATING OR ASSISTING WITH THE REMOVAL OF HOLLOW CORE BLOOD OR
BODY FLUID FILLED TUBES, NEEDLES OR CATHETERS

* Abdominal paracentesis catheter
Angiograph catheter

L ]

[ ]

e Central venous catheter

e Chest tube/vent

o Endoscope (as above & to clean)
e [ntravascular catheters

e Thoracentesis

e Urine catheter

Bronchoscope (as above & to clean)

*

ASSISTING WITH PROCEDURES

Angiography

Bone marrow asp/bx

Bronchoscopy

N95

Bronchoscopy (R/O TB)

PAPR

Central venous catheter insertion

Chest tube/vent placement

Childbirth

Endoscopy

Intubation

L.P. (holding R/O meningitis)

Morgue Release

Proctosigmodoscopy

Suture or stapling (within 3 ft. of wound)

Assisting with Surgery

Thoracentesis ass.

SPECIMEN COLLECTION

ABG

Bload glucose test

Clean catch urine specimen

Dipstick urine test

Gastric occult. blood test

Nose/throat (R/O infection)

Sputum for AFB or TB culture

N95

Stool

Stool occult blood test

Urine

Urine specific gravity

Vaginal or urethral

Venipuncture for blood

Wound or wound drainage

32



| AppendixEStandard Precautions-Personal Protective Equipment Table

R = Required
A = Available
N/A = Not Applicable

Exposed Body Parts

Contamination of Clothing

Hands

Face

Soiling

Saturation

Dripping

Gloves

Face Shield,
Mask & Goggles

Cloth Gown

Water-proof
Gown

Shoe Covers

R|A|N/A

R|A|N/A

R|A|NA

R|A|N/A

R|A|NA

SPECIMEN PROCESSING

*

per
5.0

Lab
coat

CLINICAL TASKS

Ambu bag: usage

Bladder irrigation

Blood or blood products administration

Blood warmer

Cleaning used instruments

Urine catheter: insert

Colostomy irrigation

Condom catheter application

Contact lense care

Dressing change

Emerson pump: use

Endoscope / Bronchoscopy cleaning

Enema administration

Enteral feeding tube (insert or manipulate)

Fecal disimpaction

Fecal or gastric occult blood test

Foley cath insertion

Gastric lavage

Hemovac drains-manipulate, empty / DC

Injections

Intravenous catheter insertion

J-P drain care

Nasogastric tube insertion and DC

Neonatal suck evaluations (latex-free)

1st. Newborn bath

Normal Saline or Heparin lock irrigation

02 therapy w/ mucus membrane touch

Open suctioning of airway or airway tube

Oral care

Oral/nasal airway insertion or DC

Pleur-evac care

Postural drainage

Rectal tube insertion

Resp. Tx, cough inducing

Restraint placement

Seizing patient

Sputum Induction for AFB

N85

Sputum Induction for AFB R/O tuberculosis

PAPR

Total parenteral nutrition administration

Urine bag emptying

Vital signs and Weighing patients

Wound care (without irrigation)

Wound irrigation Pulsevac Tx

33



Decision Table for Medical Waste

Type of Waste

Red Bag

Regular Bag

Sharps Container

Fluid blood, blood elements, vials of blood,
specimens for culture, used culture media, and
stock cultures.

X

Bloody body fluids or disposable drapes dripping
and/or saturated with bloody body fluids such as
CSF, synovial, pleural, pericardial, amniotic.

Bloody body fluid filled containers from nursing
units, ED, PACU, outpatient areas not treated with
Premicide.

Materials used to clean up fluid blood or bloody
body fluid spills that are dripping and/or saturated.

Surgical specimens.

Wound dressings, bandages, and wrappings
dripping and/or saturated with biood.

Food waste such as soda cans, paper cups,
cutlery, including food or service items from
isolation rooms.

Empty urine and stool containers, empty
colostomy and urinary drainage bags, empty
bedpans, breathing circuits, surgical drapes.

Gastric washings, dialysate, vomitus, feces, urine,
diapers. Please empty in toilet.

Tracheal and bronchial secretions, sputum, {V
tubing without the needles.

Soiled but not dripping and/or saturated items
such as dressings, bandages, cotton balls,
peripads, chux, cotton swabs.

Suction Canisters, treated with solidifying agent.

Used gloves, aprons, masks, goggles, and
respirators.

Broken glass, guide wires.

Uncapped Needle/syringe units, needles, scalpels,
vials from live, or attenuated vaccines.

34



@‘9 Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

INFECTION CONTROL MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: 9/1998 SUBJECT: Construction
REVISED: 04/01, 06/03, ard-4/07, 10/07, 10/13

Department Approval Date(s): 07/16

Infection Control Committee Approval Date(s): 07/16

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): n/a

Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 07/16

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A. INTRODUCTION

1. Multiple published studies have linked healthcare associated infection with the dispersal of
microorganisms during construction. Before construction begins, the focus of preparations
should be on isolation of the construction and/or renovation area. Planning is required prior
to projects that are expected to generate a moderate to high levels of dust or require
demolition or removal of any fixed building components and systems as well as new
construction projects to assure patient and staff safety. A multidisciplinary team approach will
be used.

B. PURPOSE
1. The matrix grid format adopted by our facility identifies the number and types of controls and
Infection Control interventions necessary to protect patients and decrease dust generation.

C. PROCEDURE
1. Infection Preventionist and Environment of Care Officer will:

a. Participate in planning to address needs such as handwashing facilities, storage and
equipment cleaning areas, appropriate surface finishes and specific products with
infection control and worker safety implications (i.e. sharps disposal unit placement
and accommodation for personal protection equipment).

b. Review indication for environmental cultures or volumetric air sampling.
1. Engineering will:
a. Include Infection Preventionist and Environment of Care Officer early in the planning

of construction and renovations in the hospital.

b. Assist in the coordination of efforts by completing the Pre-Projest-Site-Assessment of
the Impact of Construction Projects (Appendix-A}-prior to or during early planning
meetings with the Area Director. The Assessment of the Impact of Construction
Projects will be filled out for projects that require a building permit or will take

longer than one (1) week. The-Managers-AssessmentPre-Construstion-tAppendix

By form-will be-givenio-the-areaBirectorto-complete-

Obtain Infection Control Construction Permit prior to beginning work-{Appendix-C).
Review infection control measures prior to construction with the staff and contract
workers. Explain expectations to contractors. Ensure that infection control policies

oo

35



Infection Control Manual
Construction
Page 20of 8

are followed during the construction.
e. Direct traffic away from the construction site.

f. Notify the Infection Preventionist and the Safety Officer if mold is encountered during
a construction/renovation project and implement precautions in infection Control
Policy: Mold Abatement IC 13.3.

g. To isolate renovation areas from occupied areas, use airtight barriers. If visquine
must be substituted, ensure it is fire retardant and sealed tightly.

h. Construction or renovation projects that fail into the Class lli or [V category will have
containment performed by qualified personnel- (see Infection Control Construction
Permit Reference table on page 2ef-AppendixGC).

i. Adequate window seals should be obtained maintained to prevent outside air from
entering the room.

j- Check cleanliness of intake filters in the ventilation system.

K. Reusable barrier cubes are cleaned after each use. Take outside and hose off both
the inside and outside of the container. Spray and wipe with hospital-approved
disinfectant and allow the plastic to air dry.

2. Environmental Services (Common Areas) and Nursing (Patient Care Areas)

C. Damp dusting should be done on a regular basis to prevent the accumulation of dust
on horizontal surfaces. Use disposable damp cloth and discard immediately rather
than return to the cleaning solution to prevent disseminating spores.

d. Ceiling tiles and air-duct grates should be cleaned regularly when rooms are not
occupied.

e. Newly constructed areas should be cleaned thoroughly before admitting or
readmitting patients.

2. Nursing

a. Minimize exposure of high-risk patients to construction activities. If possible,
diagnostic procedures may be done in the patient’s room.

b. Transport patients via an alternate route or schedule transport and procedures during
periods with minimal construction activity. Patients can be masked or provided with
other barriers (e.g. covering open wounds).

c. Report infection control risks such as unsealed barriers, visible dust, opened doors,
etc. to Infection Control or the Environment of Care Officer.

d. Coordinate construction and/or renovations with patient relocations.

D. RELATED DOCUMENTS

1. Infection Control Policy: Epidemiologic Investigation of a Suspected Outbreak IC. 3

2. Infection Control Policy: Healthcare AssociatedEasility-Acquired-{Nesocemial) Infections,
Defined IC. 4

3 Infection Control Policy: Mold Abatement IC 13.3

4 Infection Control Policy Survelllance Program IC 2

Assessment of the Impact of Construction Projects

1
2. Infection Control Construction Permit
3 Infection Control & Construction Fact Sheet for Employees and Patients

F. REFERENCES
1. Bartley, J.M., APIC State of the Art Report: The role of infection control during construction in
healthcare facilities. Am J Infect Control 2000; 8 156-69.
2. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Healthcare Infection Control Practices Advisory

Committee (HICPAP) Guideline for Environmental Infection Control in Healthcare Facilities,
2008. On-line at APIC.com

3. APIC Infection Control Tool Kit Series: Construction and Renovation, 1999

36



Tri City Medical Center

Assessment of the Impact of Construction Projects

Project: Location(s): Start Date: End Date:
Project Coordinator: Contractor:
Category Factors Risk Evaluation
(A) Noise Impact, duration, scheduled
time of work
(B) Air / Dust Cutting, Grinding, Sanding,
etc.
(C) Infection Control Category of Risk: [_]
1-2-3-4
(D) Vibration Tool use, demolition,
distance
(E) Life Safety impact Hot work, disabling alarms,
penetrations, exit
modifications, smoking
(F) Security Site security, access control
(G) Disruption of utilities Planned shutdowns,
Construction near utility
system supplies
(H) Emergency Services Obstruct access to fire fanes

or fire dept.?

Brief description of work to be performed:

List areas of forecasted concerns for any/ali of the Categories

listed above

List appropriate measure(s) recommended for limiting disruption / code violation
/ potential adverse outcome.

(A)

(B)

(C)

(D)

(E)

(F)

37



38



39



| INFECTION CONTROL CONSTRUCTION PERMIT

Project Title

Project Start Date

TCMC Project Coordinator

Estimated Completion Date

General Contractor

Pager #

OSHPD Permit #

Contractor Superintendent

Superintendent Telephone #

CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY MATRIX: Infection Control Permit required for Class III and Class IV rated projects

RISK LEVEL TYPE A TYPE B TYPE C TYPE D
Group 1 I 11 11 /v
Group 2 I II 111 v
Group 3 I 111 I/ v
Group 4 II 1/ v i/ v
CLASS I 1. Execute work by minimizing raising dust from construction operations.
2. Immediately replace any ceiling tile displaced for visual inspection.
3. Rapid cleanup and disposal of waste to minimize dispersal of dust.
cLAass 11 | 1+ Provides active means to prevent airborne dust from dispensing into atmosphere,

2. Water mist work surfaces to control dust while cutting.

3. Seal unused doors with duct tapes.

4. Block off and seal air vents.

5. Wipe work surfaces with disinfectant.

6. Contain construction waste before transport in tightly covered containers

7. Wet mop and/or vacuum with HEPA filtered vacuum before leaving work area.

8. Place dust mat at entrance and exit of work areas.

9. Remove isolation and Isolate the HVAC system in areas where work is being performed.

CLASS 1. Obtain Infection Control Permit before construction begins.
111 2. Isolate HVAC system in area where work is being done to prevent contamination of duct system

3. Complete ali critical barriers or implement barrier cube before construction begins.

4. Maintain negative air pressure within work site utilizing HEPA equipped air filtration units.

5. Do not remove barriers from work area until complete project period is thoroughly cieaned by
Environmental Services

DATE 6. Vacuum work with HEPA filtered vacuum.

7. Wet mop area with disinfectant.

8. Remove barrier materials carefully to minimize spreading of dirt and debris. associated with
INITIALS construction.

9. Contain construction waste before transport in tightly covered containers.

10. Cover transport receptacle or carts. Tape covering.

11.Remove or isolate HVAC system in areas where work is being performed.

CLASS 1. Obtain Infection Control Permit before construction begins.
v 2. Isolate HVAC system in area where work is being done to prevent contamination of duct system.

3. Complete all critical barriers or implement barrier cube before construction begins.

4. Maintain negative air pressure within work site utilizing HEPA equipped air filtration units.

5. Seal holes, pipes, conduits, and punctures appropriately.

6. Construct anteroom and require all personnel to pass through this room using a HEPA vacuum cleaner
before leaving the work site or they can wear cloth or paper coveralls that are removed each time they
leave the work site

7. All personnel entering a work site are required to wear shoe covers. Shoe covers must be changed
each time the worker exits the work site.

8. Do not remove barriers from work area until completed project is thoroughly cleaned by the Environ.

DATE Services Depart.

9. Vacuum work area with HEPA filtered vacuums.

10. Wet mop with disinfectant.

INITIALS | 11.Remove barrier materials carefully to minimize spreading of dirt and debris.

12. Contain construction waste before transport in tightly covered containers.

13. Cover transport receptacles or carts. Tape covering.

14. Remove isolation of HVAC system in areas where work is being done.

Date 12 hour uninterrupted exchange Date Exceptions/Additions to this permit
Initials required Initials are noted by attached memoranda
Permit Requested By: Permit Authorized By:
Date: Date:

40



INFECTION CONTROL CONSTRUCTION PERMIT

CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY TYPES

page 2

TYPE A

Inspection and Non-Invasive Activities. Includes but is not limited to, removal of
ceiling tiles for visual inspection limited to one tile per 50 square feet, painting (but not
sanding), wall covering, electric trim work, minor plumbing, and activities which do not

generate dust or require cutting of walls or access to the ceiling other than for visual
inspection.

TYPE B

Small scale, short duration activities, which create minimal dust. Includes, but is not
limited to, installation of telephone and computer cabling, access to chase spaces,
cutting of walls or ceiling where dust migration can be controlled.

TYPE C

Any work, which generates a moderate to high level of dust or requires demolition or
removal of any fixed building components or assemblies. Includes but is not limited to,
sanding of walls for painting or wall covering, removal of floor coverings, ceiling and
case work, new wall construction, minor duct work above ceilings, major cabling
activities, and any removal which cannot be completed within a single work shift.

TYPE D

Major demolition and construction projects. Includes, but is not limited to, activities
which require consecutive work shift, requires heavy demolition or removal of a
complete system, and new construction.

INFECTION CONTROL RISK GROUPS

Group 1 Group 2 Group 3 Group 4
Lowest Medium Medium High Highest
Office areas X Cardiac Rehab. X Emergency Room X All Operating
Storage Rooms X Pulmonary Rehab X Imaging/MRI Rooms
without patient care | X Linen room X PACU/SPRA X Sterile Processing
equipment or X Materials Storage X Postpartum Areas
supplies X Admission areas X Newborn Nurseries | X Adult Critical Care
Waiting Rooms X Nuclear Medicine Units
Assembly Rooms X Discharge units X Cardiovascuiar
X Physical Therapy - Recovery
tank areas X Labor and Delivery
X Food Preparation X NICU
Center X Cardiac Cath. Lab
X Cafeteria X Interventional
X All Nursing Units imaging
except those listed X Dialysis
in Group 4 X Oncology
X Laboratory
X All endoscopy areas
X Pharmacy
Admixture

41



Construction Education

&
Tri-City Medical Center

Infection Control & Construction
Fact Sheet for Employees and Patients

What is the concern?

Aspergillus is a mold that is present almost everywhere, but is most often found around decaying
cellulose debris, water and dust. The spore most often attaches itself to dust particles to become more
buoyant and allows for airborne spread. It is a very adaptable germ; it can tolerate almost any
temperature and needs only 2-3 days to grow in a water source. Patients can breathe in these spores
and become colonized or infected. Invasive disease (Aspergillosis) in high-risk patients can lead to

death. In general, the higher the concentration of spores in the air, the higher a patient's risk of
acquiring infection.

Who is at risk?
In general, only high-risk immunocompromised patients acquire invasive disease leading to death. The
patients highest at risk for construction-related Aspergillosis are the following:
e Bone marrow transplant (BMT) patients
+ Patient with hematologic malighancy
e Patient receiving a solid organ transplant
e AIDS patient with a CD4 count < 50 AND one of the following:
Prolonged neutropenia
Chronic steroid use

How do you prevent acquisition?

Dust prevention methods are the most efficient means of preventing colonization and infection in
patients. Controlling the dust related to construction activities is imperative. Infection Control is
involved in all construction activities that potentially affect high-risk patients, including inside and

outside projects. Dust control measures are recommended by Infection Control for each project and
monitored for compliance.

What are some common dust control measures?

Wet mopping a construction area with disinfectant at the end of each workday.

Use of walk-off mats to collect dust and prevent the spread throughout the hospital.
Use of floor to ceiling partitions.

Covering debris removal containers and only transporting them during low activity.
Spraying of water or chemical onto construction site to decrease amount of dust in air.
Sealing windows that surround construction sites to prevent leakage of dust.

More frequent checking and changing of air handling filters.

Avoiding use of carpets in clinical areas, especially areas of frequent spillage.

What are other ways to prevent the spread of Aspergillus?

e Recognition of mold growth areas and proper decontamination of these areas.

e Prevention of freestanding water sources, which promote mold growth.

* High-risk patients are instructed to wear masks when being transported on campus.

42



Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

Infection Control Policy Manual

ISSUE DATE: January 1992
NEXTREVIEW DATE—10/2016
REVISION DATE(S): 9/2004, 10/13

SUBJECT: Scabies and /Lice

Department Approval Date(s): 07/16
| Infection Control Committee Approval Date(s): 07/16

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): n/a

Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 07/16

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A. PURPOSE:

1.

Provide assistance in the management and identification of scabies and lice. To prevent

transmission in the event of occupational exposure to scabies and or lice. Purpose:

B. INTRODUCTION:

1.

Scabies is a parasitic infestioninfestation of the skin caused by the human itch mite,
Sarcoptes scabiei. The microscopic scabies mite burrows into the upper layer of skin
where it lives and lays eggs. The typical presenting symptom in most patients with
scabies is intense itching (pruritus), which is usually more severe at night, and a pimple
like (papular) rash. In the immune-compromised, elderly, disabled, homeless or
debilitated patients a generalized dermatitis more widely distributed is seen with
extensive scaling, vesiculation and crusting. “Norwegian” or crusted scabies presents
as a crusty, scaly dermatitis usually of the hands and feet. Persons with crusted scabies
have thick crusts of skin that contain large number of scabies mites and eggs. ltching is
remarkably minimal.

Lice are parasitic insects that can be found on people’s heads and bodies including the
pubic area which can result in severe itching. Lice are host specific and those of animals
do not infest humans. Human lice survive by feeding on human blood. Lice move by
crawling; they cannot hop or fly. Three types of lice are:

Head lice are 2.1-3.3mm in length. Head lice infest the head and neck and attach their
eggs to the base of the hair shaft.

Body lice are 2.3-3.6mm in length. They are rarely found on the body except when
feeding, they are usually found on clothing. They are known to spread disease.

Pubic (crab) lice are 1.1-1.8mm in length. Pubic lice are typically found attached to hair in
the pubic area but sometimes are found on coarse hair elsewhere on the body (ie:
eyebrows, eyelashes, beard, mustache, chest and armpits, etc)

43



Infection Control Manual
Scabies and Lice
Page 2 of 3

C.

TRANSMISSION:
1. Scabies:

a. The scabies mite usually is spread by direct prolonged skin to skin contact with a
person who has scabies. Scabies can be indirectly spread by sharing articles of
clothing, towels or bedding with and infested person. On a person, scabies mites
can live for as long as 1-2 months. Scabies mites generally do not survive more
than 2-3 days away from human skin.

b. Persons with “Norwegian” or crusted scabies are highly contagious to other
persons due to the large number of mites present in the exfoliating scales.
Infestation can spread easily by brief direct skin to skin contact and by
contamination of items such as clothing, bedding or furniture.

2. Lice:
a. Transmission requires direct contact with an infested person & objects used by
them (ie: shared clothing and head- wear) Lice crawl, but do not hop or fly. Eggs
hatch within 7-10 days. Time of survival off host: Head lice: 2 days, Body lice: 4-7
days and Pubic (crab) lice 1 day.

POLICY:

1. Place patient in Contact Precautions upon realizing or suspecting the patient has scabies
or lice.

2. Examination of the patient by nursing and medical staff to determine if scabies or lice are

present.

a. Bag up all personal clothing and belongings and seal the bag tightly. Send clothes
and personal belongings with family if possible.

Provide topical treatment as prescribed per MD orders.

Continue Contact Precautions until 24 hours after effective treatment.

After patient is discharged and insects are visible in the room, place a work order for

Building Engineering to contact Pest Control to inspect room.

6. Once room is cleared by inspection, have Environmental Services terminally clean room.

ahw

OCCUPATIONAL EXPOSURE:

1. Standard and Contact precautions should prevent the transmission of most cases of
scabies and lice. If an exposure to a patient with scabies and or lice occur before Contact
Precautions are applied and the patient is treated the employee should:

a. Immediately report the exposure to their Supervisor, Charge Nurse or Manager as
per Employee Health & Wellness policy: Guidelines for Reporting Exposure.
2, Employee Health Services will institute appropriate follow up as needed.

RELATED DOCUMENTS:

Z1. Employee Health and Weliness Policy Manual: Administrative-Peliey#404-Injury & lliness
Prevention Program

2, Employee Health and Wellness Policy Manual: Guidelines for Reporting Exposures policy
N Empl Health Seni Polici

4:3. Infection Control: Bloodborne Exposure Control Plan {44

84. Infection Control: Philosophy I+

6-5. Infection Control: Standard and Transmission Based Precautions {&-5

46. Infection Control: Tuberculosis Exposure Control Plan &40

REFERENCE LIST:

1. APIC Text of Infection Control and Epidemiology, 4th edition, 2014

2. Control of Communicable Diseases Manual, D.L. Heymann, MD, Ed. 19" edition 2008
3. http://www.cdc.qov/parasites/scabies/index.html

4, http://www.cdc.gov/parasites/lice/

44



Infection Control Manual
Scabies and Lice
Page 30of 3

45



Q) . . stribution:  Wormen's-and-Children's Services
(c\)) Tri-City Medical Center Distribution:

PROCEDURE: AR E AR

Purpose: Tooutinethe-slessinpersrming-kaptichof either
Supportive Data: Infant-baptism-may-be-desired-by-parents-ot-rmany

DELETE WNS Procedure - retitle PCS
procedure Spiritual Care for Family of
Critically Il or Deceased Infant

Equipment:

Department Review

Clinical Policies &
Procedures

Nurse Executive
Committee

Medical Executive
Committee

Professional
Affairs Committee

Board of Directors

5/03, 6/08, 5/12,
04/16

05/12, n/a

05/12, n/a

06/12, n/a

07/12

07/12

46



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
PROFESSIONAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE CHARTER

The Professional Affairs Committee (the “Committee”) of the Tri-City Healthcare District

(“District”) has multiple purposes and is delegated certain key responsibilities as enumerated
herein.

I. Purpose

The Committee is to provide governance oversight and make recommendations to the Tri-City
Healthcare District Board of Directors (“Board”) regarding quality, patient safety, performance
improvement, and risk management policies; oversee development and implementation of the
Quality Assurance, Quality Improvement, and Patient Safety (QA/QI/PS) Programs; and provide
oversight of processes relating to the reporting, monitoring, investigation, and appropriate
responsive/corrective actions taken in connection with any issues identified at the meetings,
including the following:

1. Quality. The Committee will review reports regarding quality of patient care,
including:

a. Hospital operating unit and quality intervention programs;
b. Core measures and performance measures;
c. Medical staff and contracted hospital-based physicians’ reports.

2. Patient Safety. The Committee will review reports regarding patient safety,
including:

a. Patient safety improvement programs;

b. Incidents reported to the California Department of Public Health (CDPH)
including any findings;

c. Surveys from The Joint Commission, Center for Medicare and Medicaid
Services, and other regulatory agencies.

3. Performance Improvement. The Committee will review the following reports:
a. Operating unit performance improvements;
b. Performance of clinical service providers.
4. Risk Management. The Committee will review the District’s risk management

program, including:

a. Summaries of incident reports;

47



b. Compliments and complaints;

C. Surveys from Joint Commission, CMS, and CDPH visits;
d. Sentinel Events/Root Cause Analyses;
€. Professional liability claims and lawsuits.
5. Oversight Duties and Responsibilities. In addition, the Committee will:
a. Review and reassess the adequacy of this charter annually, recommend

any proposed changes to the Board for approval, and publish this charter
in accordance with applicable regulatory authorities;

b. Review significant reports prepared by any individual performing
significant quality assurance functions together with management’s
response and follow-up to these reports;

c. Review the District’s Administrative policies and procedures as necessary.

d. Consult with appropriate Consultants as necessary to inform the
deliberations and committee decisions as necessary.

1I. Membership

The Committee shall consist of three Directors and four physicians. The CEO, COO, Risk
Manager, and CNE shall support the Committee without vote but be counted towards a quorum
as alternates.

Term of Committee Members: (Karen do you have the language for the term of the Committee
Members?

1I1. Meetings

The Committee may establish its own meeting schedule annually. The Committee will adjourn
into closed session to meet with the legal counsel and to hear reports of the Hospital and Medical
Staff Quality Assurance Committees.

1V. Minutes

The Committee will maintain written minutes of its meetings. Draft minutes will be presented to
the Board for consideration at its meetings. The Senior Executive Assistant or designee will
provide assistance to the Committee in scheduling meetings, preparing agendas and keeping
minutes.

V. Reports

DOCS 116569-000004/1931396.1



The Committee will report regularly to the Board regarding (i) all determinations made or
actions taken pursuant to its duties and responsibilities, as set forth above, and (ii) any
recommendations of the Committee submitted to the Board for action.

VI. Conduct

Each Committee member i

DOCS 116569-000004/1931396.1

49



B expected to read the District’s Code of Conduct which can be found at
http://www.tricitymed.org/about-us/code-of-conduct/ and shall comply with all provisions
thereof while a member of this Committee.

Approved by BOD: 9/29/11
Approved by BOD: 3/28/13
Approved by BOD: 5/29/14

DOCS 116569-000004/1931396.1

50



